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PHYSICAL FEATURES AND GENERAL CHARACTER OF THE
DISTRICT

By the Lancashire (Central and Western Areas) Review Order,
1934, a part of the Township of Carleton containing 354 acres was,
on the lst April, 1934, added to the Urban District. The district
is bounded on the weat by the Irish Sea, on the east by the River
Wyre, on the North by the Borough of Fleetwood, and on the South
by the Urban District of Poulton-le- Fylde and County Bﬁmugh
of Blackpool, and is flat in character, the only rising gr ound being in
the North Ward (Bourne Hill) and the East Ward adjoining the river.

Consequent upon the addition of a part of Carleton to the
district, the Ward boundaries were altered as from 1st April, 1934,

The Water Courses of the district flow eastward into the Wyre,

GEOLOGY

The general sub-soil of the district is clay, which is overlaid
with a thick layer of alluvial deposit (blue silt) varying in thickness
from four feet to eight feet. On the top of this is a thin layer
(about four inches) of peaty matter. Peaty matter of considerable
thickness was found in one portion of the North Ward, Butts Road,
and also in Fleetwood Road in South Ward. On the top of this again
is a layer, varying from two and a half feet to four feet in thickness,
of sandy soil or a mixture of soil and clay. The surface covering
is about six inches in thickness. From above downwards we get
(1) surface covering, (2) mixture of soil and clay or sandy soil,
(3) peat, (4) blue silt, (5) boulder clay.

The nature of the above strata indicates that at some period
the River Wyre overflowed a large portion of the distriet, leaving
the alluvial deposit.

CLIMATE

The prevailing wind is a westerly sea breeze. An abundance
of summer sunshine, together with usually mild winters, produce
a temperate and very bracing climate.

AREA AND DENSITY OF POPULATION

As previously mentioned, the area of Thornton Cleveleys was
on the Ist April, 1934, increased by the inclusion of a part of the
Parish of Carleton, the total area now being given as 3,355 acres.

The average number of persons per acre is 4.649.
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The District is divided into Wards, viz. :—

West Ward.—This Ward was, on the alteration of boundaries,
reduced in size : the eastern boundary is now a building plot
depth east of Cleveleys Avenue. This Ward is in the Cleveleys
portion of the District, a rapidly growing seaside resort, which
enjoys an increasing popularity with visitors from inland towns.
It is flat in character, with a slight slope eastwards. The number
of houses 1in this Ward is 1,476 (corrected 1949).

South Ward.—Its western boundary adjoins the boundary of West
Ward and its eastern boundary is a building plot depth west
of Fleetwood Road, which it follows throughout the District.
It is again flat in character, and is residential (a portion of the
District of Cleveleys being within its boundaries). The number
of houses in this Ward is 1,450 (corrected 1949),

North Ward.—Is the industrial area of the District, and has within
its boundaries the works of the Imperial Chemical Industries
Ltd. It is bounded on the north by the Borough of Fleetwood ;
on the west by the eastern boundary of South Ward ; on the
east by the River Wyre. On the south it cuts the remaining
portion of the District roughly in half and forms the northern
boundary of East Ward. This boundary cuts across from
Fleetwood Road, thmugh Bancroft Avenue, and north of
Hillylaid Road to the river. The number of houses in this
Ward is 731 (corrected 1949).

East Ward.—This Ward is the agricultural area of the Distriet. It
also includes part of the added area. Its boundaries adjoin
the South and North Wards, the River Wyre, and on the south
the Urban District of Poulton-le-Fylde. The number of houses
in this Ward is 1,256 (corrected 1949).

SOCIAL CONDITIONS, INDUSTRIES, ETC.

The western portion of the district has, in the last few years,
rapidly developed as a seaside holiday resort, and with the additional
amenities now provided, together with the activities of private
builders, the District as a whole has greatly benefited.

The largest employers of labour within the District are the
Imperial Chemical Industries Ltd., who have a large chemical works
on the northern boundary of the district. There is still a large
portion of the District devoted to agriculture.

During the period under review there has been very little
unemployment in the district.

































BACTERIOLOGICAL EXAMINATIONS

These are carried out at the Public Health Laboratory, Man-
chester, and at the Public Health Laboratory, Blackpool. During
the year the following examinations were made :(—

Examination of sputum for the tubercle Bacillus is carried out
at Elswick Sanatorium.

Summary of Nursing Arrangements :
Hospitals and other Institutions available for the District Nursing,
Professional Nursing in the Home.

(a) In July, 1923, the District was provided through the Thornton
Cleveleys District Nursing Association, which is affiliated with
the Queen Victoria Jubilee Institution for Nurses, with a Nurse
or Nurses as occasion required. The services have given entire
satisfaction and are a boon to the district.

No. of cases No. of visits
visited during made during
the year the yvear

266 7.020

(b) For Infectious Diseases. No action has been required, but a
Nurse will be engaged if necessary.

MATERNITY AND CHILD WELFARE CENTRE

The new County School Medical and Child Welfare Department
in Church Road, Thornton, was opened in May, 1939. The School
Medical Officer and Nurses (County Council) and ladies of the District
attend weekly.

Number of occasions the Centre was opened . 48
Number of individual children attending ;. 443,
Number of attendances of children 4,326
Under From one F'rom two years
Total Ong Vear to two years and over
4,326 2,959 824 543

Number of attendances by expectant mothers :
No. of individual

expectant mothers No. of actual
attending attendances
261 1,496

Midwives Act, 1902.—Midwives resident in the District and
certified under the above Act are enrolled on the County Register.

The above are under supervision of the County Medical Officer of
Health.

Clinic and Treatment.—One is situated in the District. Tuber-
eulosis is dealt with by the County Tuberculosis Officer on notification.
Venereal Disease cases attend the Blackpool Centres at the Victoria
Hospital, Blackpool, and Fleetwood Hospital.
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NOTICES SERVED UNDER SEC. 47, PUBLIC HEALTH ACT, 1936,
AND OUTSTANDING AT 311249

In respect of IPail Closet to Water Closet 1

As far as I am aware, there are now no waste water closets in our District.
The premises using privy middens and pail closets are mostly farm premises
amd cottages connected to farm premises, and to which no sewers are available,

DRAINAGE

The drainage from two large farm premises found polluting the
watercourse was relaid and connected to the Council’s sewers. The
nuisances previously reported upon have now been eliminated.

There are 60—70 premises in the District which are not connected
to the Council’s sewers but which have septic tanks and filters, usually
discharging to an adjacent watercourse. Some of these are not
satisfactory in all respects, but are mostly in outlying districts in
which no public sewers are available. As and when sewers become
available, these will be connected.

Improvements obtained as a result of action by the Department

1. Re-drainage of farm premises and connection to Council’'s sewers (two
farms).

2. New drains laid to pig-sty.
3. New length of drain to building.
4. New drainage system to connect to sewer in lieu of discharge to dyke.

The Department employs a man part-time on drainage work,
the cost of clearing and cleansing the blocked drains being borne by
the owner or occupier. This service to the public is much appreciated
and also he]ps in the efficient working of the Department, preparation
and service of notices thus being avoided, unless the blocking is due
to structural defect of the drains.

Statistics
Total number of drains cleansed from obstruction 149
Number cleansed by Department’s workmen : 149

PUBLIC CLEANSING

The work of the Public Cleansing Section of the Department
was carried out in a satisfactory manner during the year. The
collection of household refuse and salv age was carried out by one
16 cu. yd. S8.D. (Newcastle type) side-loading freighter with a cab
to accommodate driver and four loaders, and one “W” type S.D.
16 cu. yd. side-loading freighter with cab to accommodate driver
and four loaders. A qpec:ml weekly collection of salvage from shop

and business premises in the area is carried out by one 11 cu. yd.
8.D. freighter.
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INSPECTION AND SUPERVISION OF MEAT AND OTHER FOODS

There are no licensed slaughter-houses in the area, but inspections
to retail shop premises were paid at frequent intervals. All food
preparation premises are regularly inspected at least once a quarter
and for that purpose 454 inspections were carried out. (Bakehouses :
restaurants and cafe kitchens: unsound foodstuffs: fish friers :
ice cream premises ; butchers shops and food preparation premises.)

By regular inspection, advice and co-operation with the owners,
we have obtained several improvements in food preparation premises
and bakehouses. It has been possible to get owners and employees
interested in using hygienic methods in the preparation of food in
their premises, and it is hoped to intensify efforts in this direction
in the future.

CARCASES INSPECTED AND CONDEMNED

The following are the particulars of the animals killed in the
District, carcases inspected and particulars of any condemnations.

The slaughter of animals for food in this district is confined
to pigs slaughtered under licence from the appropriate authority
for individual self-suppliers of meat.

Cattle Sheep
excluding| Cows | Calves | and Pigs

COWS Lambs
Mumber killed (if known) - : 159
Number inspected - — 159

All Diseases except Tuberculosis
Whole carcases condemned — = - - —~
Carcases of which some part or

organ was condemned - . - 3
Percentage of the number
inspected affected  with
disease other than Tuber-

culosis - - = 1.82
Tuberculosis only—
Whole carcases condemmned - = - 1

Carcases of which some part
or organ was condemned - - : -
Percentage of number in-
spected affected with Tuber-
culosis - - 3.2%

o
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SAMPLES TAKEN FROM MANUFACTURERS OUTSIDE AREA

Manufacturer "F" : Samples numbered 3, 23.
Manufacturer ;"' : Sample numbered 11.
Manufacturer “H" : Sample numbered 4.
Manufacturer 'I"": Sample numbered 8.
Manufacturer “J"" : Sample numbered 12.

ICE CREAM

There are four factories in the District manufacturing heat-
treated ice cream and one factory cold-mix. The premises generally
are of a satisfactory standard and possess the necessary modern
equipment, including steam sterilisation plants.

The sampling of ice ecream has been of great assistance to us,
and has enabled us to point out defects which have occurred in the
manufacture. Co-operation between the manufacturers of the
ice eream and the Department has been good, and several minor
improvements were carried out.

DESTRUCTION OF DOMESTIC PETS

The Council have provided a modern electrical chamber for the
destruction of unwanted dogs and cats. This facility has been
greatly appreciated by the public, and for a nominal charge any
person can have a dog or cat destroyed painlessly. The Department
undertakes the proper disposal of the carcases,

Number of dogs destroyed in 1949 207
Number of cats destroyed in 1949 105
T
Total income from destruction of animals 26 12 6
Total income from sale of carcases 710 0
Total i34 2 8

MARKETS

The only market in the District which is privately owned has
been regularly inspected throughout the year.

SHELL FISH

There are no shell fish beds in our area.

MORTUARY

The present mortuary is both unsatisfactory and inadequate,
and the Council are most desirous of providing a modern one
possessing equipment in accordance with present day practice.

A new mortuary will be provided during the year 1950, and it
is anticipated will come into use during the month of September.
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